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1824-2009

York, South Carolina




Trinity United Methodist Church dates back almost to the beginning of the town of
Yorkville, now York, which was laid out about 1786. However, it was not until 1849 that the
town of Yorkville was incorporated with a population of eight hundred people.

Yorkville's first Methodist Episcopal Church, Trinity, was organized in 1824 by Rev.
William Gassaway who was the first Circuit Rider for the counties which include York. Rev.
Gassaway served churches throughout South Carolina for 45 years and is buried near Tirzah,
SC, on land given him by a Mr. James Fulton.

The first congregation consisted of nine members: James Jeffries, Mrs. Elizabeth H.
Jefiries, Col. Thomas W. Williams, Dr. John E. Jennings, John Chambers, Mrs. Margaret
Chambers, Mrs. Sarah Beaty, and Mrs. Tabitha Wilkerson. The following pages from Early
Methodism in the Carolinas lists early ministers and the number of members in the charge:
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The first church building was built in 1826 on College Street, with a cemetery adjoining.
The cemetery still remains on the site. A half-acre of land for the building of this meeting
house was given by J.M. Harris. This church building was a plain wooden structure, directly
opposite from the graded school building. It had an outside entry to the gallery where the
slaves entered for worship. The first Quarterly Conference of the York Circuit was held in this
building on April 30, 1831. Members present were: William M. Kennedy, presiding elder;
Stephen Williams, preacher in charge; William Gassaway, local elder; James B. Fulton, ex-
horter; Alexander Hill, Sr.; exhorter; James Jeffries, law secretary. Also in attendance were
Charles Wilson, Sr., Thomas William Nance, J. Dawson, and Peyton B. Darwin. As shown on
the chart above, Trinity became a station church in 1852, but during the Civil War, the member-
ship became scattered and reduced. The close of that war found the congregation too weak to
continue as a separate charge, and were put on a charge with King’s Mountain Chapel and
Philadelphia Church. This Charge continued until 1885, when the church was again strong
enough to be a station church.



Later, the church moved to two other
buildings (on E. Jefferson St. and E. Liberty
St.). The E. Liberty Street church was pur-
chased in 1882. This building had formerly
been occupied by the Independent Presbyte- .
rian Church and was located in front of Rose
Hill Cemetery.

Plans for the present Trinity we made on April 6, 1887. Before
that meeting adjourned, the subscription amounted to more than $2500.
The contract for the building was let on September 15, 1890. One of
-~ the charter members, Mrs. Elizabeth Jeffries, was alive at the time of

the building of the latest Trinity Church. The building committee con-
sisted of T.S. Jeffries, chairman, F. Happerfield, H.C. Strauss, Dr. John
May, Jr., and J.W. Dobson. The church is constructed of brick, with
granite trimmings, and in the Gothic style of architecture. The audito-
rium is left of the tower, while the Sunday School room (the annex) is
to the right. The entrance is made by means of two sets of stone steps
-and lead into the vestibule. This vestibule occupies the base of the
- tower. It is twelve feet square, and the floor is lad with alternate
| squares of black and white marble. Including the spire, the tower is
- seventy-eight feet high. The auditorium is thirty by fifty-eight feet
“with the overhead ceiled in cherry and yellow pine panel work. The
original pulpit (now located in the Benfield Classroom) is made of
walnut and ash and has an inlaid cross which the architect, Mr. Bonnewell sawed from the tim-
bers of Independence Hall in Philadelphia.

RTHRE

In 1960, an educational building was erected. At
this time the Decalogue tablets, part of the original build-
ing, were cleaned and placed in the hall leading from the
Sanctuary to the educational building.




In May of 1994, construction was begun on the Trinity Center, adding educational and
recreational space. The center allows for multiple activities to take place, and is used for
church and community activities. A new kitchen, an integral part of the center, is very well-
equipped.

Trinity Sunday School has the distinction of being one of the three oldest such organizations in
South Carolina (the other two being in Columbia). The Sunday School was organized March 3,
1829. The picture was taken of a Sunday School class sometime in the 1930’s.
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Since the existence of Trinity Church, the women have played an important role. The available
records note that a Woman’s Society was organized in 1886, later to add a Woman’s Foreign
Missionary Society which is still an important part of the church, offering spiritual, as well as,
recreational activities for youth.

Today, Trinity UMC is a thriving, exciting hub of ministry. Members participate in many out-
reach opportunities: PATH, Tenderheart Ministry, Sudan Projects, UMYF, Children’s activi-
ties, Habitat for Humanity, and Prison Ministry, to name a few. Trinity looks to the future as
the church seeks out the lost through evangelism and a caring attitude toward the community.



